
           
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION §38-431.01, THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD
AN OPEN MEETING IN THE SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA.
ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE
CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC
IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, MARCH 3, 2015 - 10:00 A.M.
             
1. CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

- INVOCATION
 

 

2. PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A.   Presentation of information on the Resolution
Copper Mining Project by Bryan Seppala,
Stakeholder Engagement Analyst, and Jim
Schneck, Manager of Communities.

Presented

 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A.   Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Gila
County Ordinance No. 2015-01 establishing a
curfew for minors in the unincorporated areas
of Gila County.   (Don McDaniel)

No Action
Taken

 

4. REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A.   (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County
Board of Supervisors, and convene as the
Gila County Library District Board of
Directors) Information/Discussion/Action to
approve a Library Services and Technology Act
(LSTA) Grant Application to the Arizona State
Library, Archives, and Public Records in the
amount of $18,700 for an Adult Literacy
Materials Grant for the period of May 20,
2015, through August 1, 2016.(Jacque

Approved



Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila
County Library District Board of Directors
and reconvene as the Gila County Board of
Supervisors)

 

B.   Information/Discussion/Action to review all
bids submitted for Request for Proposals No.
111714 for the purchase of one new or used
hydraulic tail equipment trailer; award to the
lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and
authorize the Chairman's signature on the
award contract for the winning bidder.  (Jeff
Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

Awarded

 

C.   Information/Discussion/Action to approve
Contract No. 013015 with EPS Group to
provide civil engineering design for the Copper
Administration Building in an amount not to
exceed $49,966.85 without prior written
approval of the County.  (Jeff Hessenius and
Steve Stratton)

Approved

 

D.   Information/Discussion/Action to authorize
the electronic submittal of an Arizona Nutrition
Network SNAP-Ed Request for Grant
Application (RFGA No. ADHS15-00004836) to
the State of Arizona Department of Health
Services in the amount of $201,572 per year
for a 3-year period which, if approved, will
enable the Health and Emergency Services
Division to implement a policy, systems and
environmental change focus to affect positive,
healthy behaviors.  (Josh Beck)

Authorized

 

E.   Information/Discussion/Action to sell Approved



E.   Information/Discussion/Action to sell
State-owned tax parcel number 208-03-102B
to the City of Globe for $1.00 as it is a portion
of land of which the Globe Active Adult Center
is situated; and authorize the Chairman's
signature on the Quit Claim Deed.  (Don
McDaniel)

Approved

 

F.   Move to go into executive session pursuant to
A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) in
order to receive legal advice from its attorney
regarding a Complaint from Carson
Construction (CV 201500006) regarding the
Pine Creek Canyon Road Construction Project
and to discuss or consult with the attorney of
the public body in order to consider its
position and instruct its attorney regarding the
public body's position in order to avoid or
resolve litigation.  Then, after executive session
has concluded move to direct the County
Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in
executive session.
(Bryan Chambers)

Directed
Attorney

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  (Any
matter on the Consent Agenda will be
removed from the Consent Agenda and
discussed and voted upon as a regular
agenda item upon the request of any
member of the Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

A.   Approval of the Payson Regional Constable's
submission of a grant application to the State
of Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards &
Training Board in the amount of $4,884.95 to
purchase four tasers with holsters, download
kits, battery packs and cartridges; accept the
grant award in the amount of $4,884.95; and
authorize the Chairman's signature on Grant

Approved



Award Contract No. CNA15-430.
 

B.   Approval of the Payson Regional Constable's
submission of a grant application to the State
of Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards &
Training Board in the amount of $2,853.84 to
purchase two ballistic vests with carriers;
accept the grant award in the amount of
$2,853.84; and authorize the Chairman's
signature on Grant Award Contract No.
CNA15-431.

Approved

 

C.   Acknowledgment of the resignations of Debra
Williams, Michael O'Driscoll, John Armer and
David Wales from the Gila County Local
Emergency Planning Committee (GCLEPC);
and the nominations of appointment of Keith
Thompson, Gila County Sheriff's Office
Lieutenant, as GCLEPC Chairman, and Todd
Whitney, Gila County Emergency Services
Division Emergency Management/Public
Health Emergency Preparedness Planner, as
GCLEPC Coordinator effective as of March 3,
2015, and upon approval by the Arizona
Emergency Response Commission.

Acknowledged

 

D.   Approval of a request by the Phoenix Metro
Bicycle Club to use the Courthouse parking
area as a rest stop for a bike ride on March 14,
2015.

Approved

 

E.   Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement
renewal between Gila County and the Town of
Mammoth, whereby the Town of Mammoth
Library will continue to be a designated
"Access Point" under the Workforce Investment
Act for the period of July 1, 2014, through
June 30, 2015.

Approved



 

F.   Acknowledgment of the January 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Payson
Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

G.   Acknowledgment of the January 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Clerk of the
Superior Court's Office.

Acknowledged

 

H.   Acknowledgment of the January 2015 monthly
activity report submitted by the Globe Regional
Justice of the Peace's Office.

Acknowledged

 

I.   Approval of the January 27, 2015, Board of
Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Approved

 

J.   Acknowledgment of the Human Resources
reports for the weeks of February 3, 2015,
February 10, 2015, February 17, 2015, and
February 24, 2015.

Acknowledged

 

K.   Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000
which have been approved by the County
Manager for the weeks of February 1, 2015,
to February 6, 2015; and February 9, 2015 to
February 13, 2015.

Acknowledged

 

L. Approval of finance
reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of
February 24, 2015, and March 3, 2015.

Approved

 

6. CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is
held for public benefit to allow individuals to
address the Board of Supervisors on any issue
within the jurisdiction of the Board of
Supervisors. Board members may not discuss
items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona

Comments
Provided



Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the
conclusion of an open call to the public,
individual members of the Board of
Supervisors may respond to criticism made by
those who have addressed the Board, may ask
staff to review a matter or may ask that a
matter be put on a future agenda for further
discussion and decision at a future date.

 

7. At any time during this meeting pursuant to
A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of
Supervisors and the County Manager may
present a brief summary of current events. No
action may be taken on issues presented.

Presented

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928)
425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL
7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO
(928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING
LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION §38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE
MEETING



   

ARF-3018     Presentation Agenda Item      2. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Request/Subject
Resolution Copper Company Project Update

Background Information
Bryan Seppala, Stakeholder Engagement Analyst, of Resolution Copper
Company requested to provide the Board of Supervisors with a brief project
update of its mining project in Superior, Arizona.  Mr. Jim Schneck, Manager of
Communities, for Resolution Copper Company will also present information.

Evaluation
This presentation and update provides the Board of Supervisors and the County
with current information regarding the local Resolution Copper Company
Project. 

Conclusion
N/A

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation of information on the Resolution Copper Mining Project by Bryan
Seppala, Stakeholder Engagement Analyst, and Jim Schneck, Manager of
Communities.

Attachments
No file(s) attached.



   
ARF-2992     Public Hearing      3. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors
Department: County Manager

Information
Request/Subject
An ordinance establishing a curfew for minors in the unincorporated
areas of Gila County

Background Information
In May of 2012, County staff developed a curfew ordinance to help control
underage drinking in areas of the unincorporated county.

The Board of Supervisors in their Work Session on January 29, 2013,
considered the staff's draft of a Curfew Ordinance. The Ordinance
proposed establishing a curfew of 10:00 pm to 6:00 am seven (7) days a
week for residents under the age of 18. The draft Ordinance also
establishes the circumstances which would constitute exceptions to the
curfew, the forms of enforcement, and the penalties for violation of the
Ordinance.

The Work Session concluded with the Board instructing staff to circulate
the proposed ordinance to the elected officials and the public and then
present those comments/suggestions to the Board at a future meeting.
Both the Chief Probation Officer and the Sheriff have reviewed the original
ordinance and changes have been made to the current draft in keeping
with their comments.

Evaluation
The original draft Curfew Ordinance was created by compiling sections of
ordinances currently in effect in other jurisdictions in Arizona. The
revised draft (February 2015) includes changes based upon comments
received at and after the Work Session.

While most cities and towns already have curfew ordinances that are
enforceable within their corporate limits, Gila County does not have a



curfew which applies to the unincorporated areas. Some have observed
that when the ordinances are enforced within a city or town, the violators
simply move to the unincorporated areas to continue their activities after
hours. 

The proposed Curfew Ordinance (February 2015 Draft) only applies to
unincorporated areas of Gila County including US Forest Service land,
Bureau of Land Management land, and Arizona State Land Department
land, but specifically excludes incorporated cities and towns as well as
sovereign Indian nations and reservations that are located within the
County.

Primary enforcement of the curfew would be carried out by the Gila
County Sheriff.
 

Conclusion
The February 2015 Draft Curfew Ordinance for the unincorporated areas
of the County appears to be consistent with the ordinances that currently
exist in the incorporated communities.  Therefore, it appears this
Draft Curfew Ordinance responds to the inequity that exists between the
incorporated and the unincorporated areas of Gila County.

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Curfew
Ordinance No. 2015-01.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Gila County Ordinance No.
2015-01 establishing a curfew for minors in the unincorporated areas of
Gila County.   (Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Ordinance No. 2015-01
Public Hearing Notice for Curfew Ordinance



GILA COUNTY 
 

CURFEW ORDINANCE NO. 2015-01 
 

 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS RELATING TO CURFEW HOURS 
FOR MINORS IN ORDER TO REDUCE JUVENILE CRIME, PROTECT THE CITIZENS OF GILA COUNTY, 
AND REINFORCE PARENTAL SUPERVISION. 

 
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. §11‐251 AND §11‐251.05; BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GILA COUNTY BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION I – DEFINITIONS: 

1. “Adult” means a person 18 years of age or older. 

2. “County” means the County of Gila, Arizona, and includes all unincorporated areas of the 
County of Gila under the jurisdiction of the County of Gila including United States Forest 
Service land, United States Bureau of Land Management land, and Arizona State Land 
Department land, but excludes all incorporated cities, towns and sovereign Indian nations 
and reservations located within the County. 

3. “Emergency” means an unforeseen combination of circumstances or the resulting state that 
calls for immediate action. The term includes, but is not limited to, a fire, a national 
disaster, an automobile accident or any situation requiring immediate action to prevent 
serious bodily injury or loss of life or property. 

4. “GCO 2015‐01” means Gila County Ordinance No. 2015‐01 and its subsections. 

5. “Guardian” means a person who, under court order, has the legal authority and duty to care 
for another person because of infancy (having not attained the age of 18 years), incapacity 
or disability. A guardian may be a public or private agency with whom a minor has been 
placed by a court. 

6. “Insufficient Supervision” means failure of a parent, guardian, or adult with supervisorial 
custody to exercise reasonable care and diligence in parenting/rearing a minor. 

7. “Minor” means any person less than eighteen (18) years of age. 

8. “Parent” means a person who is a natural, adoptive, or foster mother or father; or a 
step‐mother or step‐father of at least eighteen (18) years of age who is properly authorized 
to have the care and custody of a minor. 

9. “Remain” means to linger or stay or fail to leave premises when requested to do so by a law 
enforcement officer or by the owner, operator or authorized person in control of the 
premises. 



10. “Separate Offense” means an offense arising out of the same event as another offense but 
containing some differences in elements of proof. A person may be tried, convicted and 
sentenced for each separate offense. 

11. “Supervisorial Custody” means being held or kept under the supervision of an adult who is 
charged or directed by proper authority with holding or keeping a minor under 
supervision. 

SECTION II – OFFENSES: 

1. It is unlawful for any minor under the age of eighteen (18) years to be or remain in, about, 
or upon any place in the County away from the dwelling house or usual abode of said minor 
between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m. Sunday through Wednesday and between the 
hours of 12:00 a.m. to 5:00 a.m. Thursday through Saturday. 

SECTION III – DEFENSES: 

It is a defense to prosecution under GCO 2015‐01, Section II Paragraph 1 that the minor was: 

1. Accompanied by the minor’s parent, guardian or an adult having supervisorial custody. 

2. With prior written permission of the parent or guardian, or an adult having supervisorial 
custody, in a motor vehicle involved in interstate travel. 

3. With prior written permission of the parent or guardian, or an adult having supervisorial 
custody, in an employment activity or going to or returning home from an employment 
activity without any detour or stop. 

4. Involved in an emergency. 

5. With prior written permission of the parent or guardian, or an adult having supervisorial 
custody, attending an official school, religious or other recreational activity supervised by 
adults and sponsored by any school district, governmental entity, a civic organization or 
other similar entity that takes responsibility for the minor, or going to or returning from 
without any detour or stop, an official school, religious or other recreational activity 
supervised by adults and sponsored by any school district, governmental entity, a civic 
organization or other similar entity that takes responsibility for the minor. 

6. With prior written permission of the parent or guardian, or an adult having supervisorial 
custody, exercising the First Amendment right of free exercise of religion or freedom of 
speech protected by the United States Constitution. 

7. With prior written permission of the parent or guardian, or an adult having supervisorial 
custody, was engaged in reasonable, legitimate and specific business and/or activity. 

8.   Married or had been married, or had disabilities of a minor removed, or emancipation 
ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction.



SECTION IV – PARENT OR GUARDIAN DUTIES UPON DEMAND FOR CUSTODY: 

In addition to any other authority he/she may have, any law enforcement officer who arrests 
a minor for violation of any provision of this Ordinance is also authorized and may demand 
that the parent, guardian or adult having supervisorial custody of a minor, take the minor into 
his/her custody. It shall be unlawful for any parent; guardian or adult having supervisorial 
custody of the minor to willfully fail or refuse to take the minor into custody after such 
demand is made upon him/her. 
  
SECTION V – ENFORCEMENT: 

Before taking any enforcement action under this Ordinance, a law enforcement officer shall 
ask the apparent offender for proof of his/her age and the reason for being away from the 
apparent offender’s dwelling house or usual abode. The officer shall not issue a citation or 
make an arrest under this Ordinance unless the officer reasonably believes that an offense 
has occurred and that, based upon the circumstances, the minor’s responses and conduct do 
not qualify as a defense as provided in GCO 2015‐01, Section III, Paragraphs 1 through 8. 

SECTION VI – SEPARATE OFFENSE: 

Each violation of GCO 2015‐01, Section II, and Paragraph 1 shall constitute a separate offense. 

SECTION VII – PENALTIES: 

1. First Offense: Any minor found in violation of this Ordinance for the first time shall 
be required to perform not more than 10 hours of community service. Community 
service may be substituted on an hour for hour basis for attendance at an officially 
recognized teen outreach program, counseling program or course on substance 
abuse.  

2. Second Offense: Any minor found in violation of this Ordinance for a second time shall 
be required to perform not more than 10 hours of community service and pay a fine not 
to exceed one hundred ($100.00) dollars. The fine may be waived if the minor provides 
written proof of attendance and completion of an officially recognized teen outreach 
program, counseling program or course on substance abuse. 

3. Third Offense: Any minor found in violation of this Ordinance for a third or subsequent 
time shall be required to perform not more than 10 hours of community service and pay a 
fine not to exceed more than five hundred ($500.00) dollars. 

SECTION VIII – SEVERABILITY: 

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase or portion of this Ordinance is for any 
reason held to be invalid or unconstitutional by the decision of any court of competent 
jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions thereof. 

 

 

 



SECTION IX – PRESERVATION OF PEACE, HEALTH AND SAFETY: 

Whereas, it is necessary for the preservation of the peace, health and safety of the minors and 
residents of Gila County, Arizona, this Ordinance shall become effective from and after thirty 
(30) days from the date of adoption by the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Gila County Board of Supervisors this 3rd day of March 2015. 

 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS: 
 
 

By:       
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST: 

 
 
    

Bryan Chambers, Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 



GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 

PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE 

 

 PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Gila County Board of Supervisors 

will hold a public hearing at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday March 3, 2015, at the Gila County 

Courthouse Supervisors Hearing Room, 1400 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona to discuss and 

receive public comment, and to consider adopting Curfew Ordinance No. 2015-01, which 

imposes curfew hours on minors in the unincorporated areas of Gila County.  

One or more Board members may participate in the hearing by telephone conference call or by 

interactive television video (ITV). Any member of the public is also welcome to participate in 

the hearing via ITV at the Board of Supervisors Conference Room, 610 E. Highway 260, 

Payson, Arizona.   

The proposed Curfew Ordinance provides curfew hours of 10:00 p.m. to 6:00 a.m. Sunday 

through Thursday and 12:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Friday and Saturday, allows exceptions with 

parental approval, and provides penalties of community service or attendance of approved 

counseling. 

Copies of the proposed Curfew Ordinance No. 2015-01 are available for public review at the 

Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Office, 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, Arizona 85501. 

Dated this 6
th

 day of February 2015. 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

Publish:  Arizona Silver Belt:       One Publication:   February 11, 2015          Acct. 101514 



   
ARF-3033     Regular Agenda Item      4. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Jacque Griffin, Asst. County Manager/Librarian 
Submitted By: Pam Beerens, Public Services Librarian, Asst County Manager/Library District
Department: Asst County Manager/Library District Division: Library District

Information
Request/Subject
Library Services & Technology Act Grant Application for Adult Literacy Materials Grant to Arizona State Library
Archives and Public Records in the amount of $18,700.00.

Background Information
The Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records Department offers and administers Library Services and
Technology Act (LSTA) grants. The grant timeline requires that any application be submitted by March 9, 2015.
These grants do not require any additional matching funds beyond existing staff.  Library District staff are applying
for an "Adult Literacy Materials" grant to provide a collection of adult literacy books and materials at each of the
eight affiliate libraries.

Evaluation
The Public Services Librarian was accepted to be part of the Excelling Grantwriters Group of the Arizona State
Library, Archives and Public Records. This is a six-month process to develop an application for a Library Services
and Technology Act (LSTA) grant. The Gila County Library District decided to apply for a LSTA grant for fiscal year
2016 to promote Adult Literacy learning in Gila County.  This grant will provide books and materials for each library
that are designed to assist adults who want to improve their reading and writing skills.  Library staff are asking for a
total amount of $18,700 in LSTA funds.  $15,456.84 will be for books and materials.  $325 will cover travel
expenses for the Public Services Librarian to deliver materials to each library, $1218.16 will provide posters, display
materials, brochures, and survey forms, and $1,700 will cover indirect costs.

Conclusion
There is a need in Gila County for literacy resources for adult non-readers, low-level readers, and ESL learners.  The
public libraries in Gila County would like the opportunity to serve this need and to be a bridge to other programs
and resources.  This LSTA grant allows each library to offer a core collection of materials to begin to meet this need.

Recommendation
Library District Staff recommends that the Library District Board of Directors approve the submittal of an LSTA
grant application to the Arizona State Library, Archives and Public Records in the amount of $18,700 for materials
related to Adult Literacy.

Suggested Motion

(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors, and convene as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors) Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Library Services and
Technology Act (LSTA) Grant Application to the Arizona State Library, Archives, and Public Records in the amount of
$18,700 for an Adult Literacy Materials Grant for the period of May 20, 2015, through August 1, 2016.(Jacque
Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and reconvene as
the Gila County Board of Supervisors)

Attachments

LSTA Grant Application

























   

ARF-3030     Regular Agenda Item      4. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

3-3-15 to
6-30-15

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Contract Award for Request For Proposals No. 111714.

Background Information
At the January 20, 2015 Board of Supervisors Regular meeting, the Board of
Supervisors authorized the advertisement of Request for Proposals (RFP) No. 111714
for the purchase of one new or used hydraulic tail equipment trailer. 

In January 1999, Gila County purchased a 1998 Wallace Lowboy trailer (Gila County
equipment number C-18T), to haul heavy equipment to and from various construction
project sites.  The purchase price was $41,255.  The Consolidated Roads Department
intends to sell the current haul trailer, equipment number C-18T, and purchase a
safer and more efficient equipment hauler.

RFP No. 111714 was advertised in the Arizona Silver Belt on January 28, 2015, and
February 4, 2015.  Sealed bids were due on February 11, 2015 by 3:00 P.M. MST.

Evaluation
Sealed bids for RFP No. 111714 were accepted in the Gila County Finance Department
through 3:00 P.M. MST on Wednesday, February 11, 2015.  The Finance Department
received four competitive bids from vendors.

Empire Truck & Trailer submitted the lowest price that meets the bid specifications,
quoting $75,319.75 for a new Trail King TK80HT.

Conclusion
The current haul trailer owned by Gila County, equipment number C-18T, does not
have a tilt bed, which in addition to being a safety issue makes it difficult for one
person to load and unload a piece of heavy equipment.  A hydraulic tail trailer will
lessen the potential of injury to employees and County equipment, as well as be more
efficient in hauling equipment to different locations to save time.  A hydraulic trail
trailer has a gooseneck like drop-deck trailer with an added bonus of a hydraulic flip



tail.  This flip can be folded out and lowered to the ground for loading equipment and
materials.  The Consolidated Roads Department intends to sell the current haul trailer,
equipment number C-18T, and purchase a safer and more efficient equipment hauler.

Recommendation
The Public Works Division Director and the Finance Division Director recommend that
the Board of Supervisors award a contract related to Request for Proposals No. 111714
for the purchase of one new or used hydraulic tail equipment trailer.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request for Proposals
No. 111714 for the purchase of one new or used hydraulic tail equipment trailer;
award to the lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's
signature on the award contract for the winning bidder.  (Jeff Hessenius and Steve
Stratton)

Attachments
Bid Results
Empire Truck and Trailer proposal
Utility Trailer Sales Co. of Arizona proposal
RDO Equipment proposal
Ditch Witch of Arizona proposal
Contract No. 111714-Empire Truck and Trailer
Legal Explanation

































































































































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   

ARF-3001     Regular Agenda Item      4. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

2-17-15 to
2-16-16

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Contract No. 013015 with EPS Group for the civil design on the Copper Administration
Building.

Background Information
At the September 30, 2014, Board of Supervisors' Work Session, the Board of
Supervisors approved the purchase of a used modular structured building to relocate
existing County departments and personnel from private leased offices to County
property.  The site selected for the modular building was previously used as a
maintenance yard and shop.  The site will require various improvements and
modifications to fulfill its newly designated purpose as an administration building site. 
A cost analysis-itemized cost sheet was provided to the Board at the September 30,
2014, Work Session, which itemizes site improvements that will need to be performed
on the used structure in order to make it a workable environment for County staff.

Evaluation
In order for the site to function as an administration building site, and to ensure the
safety of County employees and the public, the services of a civil engineer will be
required to design various site improvements.  The civil engineer will design an overall
site plan which will include grading, drainage, parking, ADA compliant accesses to the
building, sidewalks, stairs, privacy walls, and slope protection.

A site plan is critical for planning the project, permitting the project, and constructing
the project.  The design for grading, drainage and parking is critical since the intended
use of the site has changed from its former use.  The design for ADA compliant
entrances into the building, sidewalks, and stairs will ensure compliance with
applicable laws and provide connectivity to other County offices.  The design of the
privacy walls will provide increased safety for County employees and the public and
also provide separation of the 911 building from the general public.  The design for
slope protection will decrease future maintenance costs by preventing erosion of slopes.

A Request for Qualifications (RFQ) was developed which outlined the items needing to



be designed.  The RFQ contained a written description of what was needed, various
exhibits (maps, drawings, details, etc.), and a scoring criterion by which the firms
would be selected.  Once the RFQ was prepared, staff selected three firms, held a
project walk through meeting, and distributed the RFQ at the walk through.  The three
firms selected were:  Stantec Consulting, Tetra Tech, Inc., and EPS Group.  RFQ
responses were submitted to Gila County by Tetra Tech, Inc. and EPS Group.  Staff
reviewed the two responses received, and scored each response based on the criterion
provided in the RFQ.  Out of a possible 100 points, Tetra Tech, Inc. scored an average
of 94.5, and EPS Group scored an average of 99.5.  Based on the scoring criterion, EPS
Group was selected to enter into negotiations.  After multiple revisions during
negotiations, staff believes an agreement has been reached that is appropriate for the
services to be provided and the current circumstances.

Conclusion
The principal goal of the Public Works Division is to complete the new Copper
Administration Building, so it can be occupied by its intended County staff.  The
services provided by EPS Group will play a critical role in completing this goal.

Recommendation
Gila County Public Works Division Director, Steve Stratton, recommends that the
Board approve Contract No. 013015 with EPS Group in an amount not to exceed
$49,966.85 to provide the civil engineering design for the Copper Administration
Building.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Contract No. 013015 with EPS Group to
provide civil engineering design for the Copper Administration Building in an amount
not to exceed $49,966.85 without prior written approval of the County.  (Jeff
Hessenius and Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Professional Consulting Services Contract No. 013015
Request for Qualifications
EPS Group Statement of Qualifications
Tetra Tech Statement of Qualifications
Scoring results for EPS Group
Scoring results for Tetra Tech
Final Negotiated Pricing and Scope with EPS Group
Cost Analysis-Itemized Cost Sheet
Legal Explanation





























































































































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office “approval as to form” of contract or agreement. 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the contract or agreement attached to this 

agenda item and has determined that it is in its proper form and  is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to the public agency requesting the County 

Attorney’s Office review.   

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office 
“Approval as to Form” Review 

 
 
  The Gila County Attorney’s Office is often called upon to review contracts and 
other agreements between public entities represented by the County Attorney and 
private vendors, contractors, and individuals.   
 
 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews these contracts 
to see that they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means 
that the contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific 
legislative requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public 
agency.  It does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports 
the policy objectives contained in the contract.  That approval is solely the province 
of the public agency through its elected body.    
 
 The public agency or department submitting the contract for review has the 
responsibility to read and understand the contract in order to completely understand 
its obligations under the contract if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s 
board.  This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the contract 
as to form, the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the 
capacity to actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County 
Attorney’s Office does not monitor contract compliance.  Hence the public entity or 



submitting department will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A 
thorough knowledge of the provisions of the contract will be necessary to monitor 
compliance. 

 
 Before signing a contract “approved as to form,” the County Attorney’s Office 
will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about the contract.  It is 
the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the contract for 
review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the contract 
to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the contract for review.  
Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office review of 
the contract because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of greatest 
concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the agency does 
have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County Attorney’s Office to 
meaningfully review the agreement.   

 



   
ARF-3019     Regular Agenda Item      4. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Josh Beck, PHEP Manager, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services
Fiscal Year: 2015-2016 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

10/1/15 to 9/30/18 Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Arizona Nutrition Network SNAP-Ed Request for Grant Application No. ADHS15-00004836

Background Information
The United States Department of Agriculture's (USDA's) Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP) offers
nutrition assistance to millions of eligible, low-income individuals and families and provides economic benefits to
communities. SNAP is the largest program in the domestic hunger safety net. The Food and Nutrition Service works
with state agencies, nutrition educators, and neighborhood and faith-based organizations to ensure that those
eligible for nutrition assistance can make informed decisions about applying for the program and can access
benefits. 

In 1981, nutrition education, now termed SNAP-Education (SNAP-Ed) was established and added as an optional
program in the states.  The goal of SNAP-Ed was to improve the likelihood that persons eligible for SNAP would
make healthy choices within a limited budget and choose active lifestyles consistent with the current Dietary
Guidelines for Americans and MyPlate.  States could apply for matching funds from the federal government to
deliver nutrition education to eligible persons (all persons at or below 185 percent of the federal poverty level who
may or may not be enrolled in SNAP).  In 1992, seven states established nutrition education programs SNAP-Ed. By
2004, nutrition education was being conducted in all 50 states. Recently, the SNAP-Ed program moved away from
the matching funds required making this a great opportunity for Gila County.

Gila County is eligible for $201,572 in funding each year of the three-year contract.  These funds are to be
used for population health initiatives in the areas of: Food Systems, Active Living, School Health, and Early
Childhood Education.

Evaluation
For many years, health programs have focused on individual behavior, assuming that if you teach people what will
make them healthy, they will find a way to do it. Unfortunately, being healthy is not just about individual choices.
Where you live affects how you live - you simply can’t make healthy decisions if healthy options aren’t available to
you.
 
This funding will enable the Gila County Health Department to implement a policy, systems and environmental
change focus that makes healthier choices a real, feasible option for every community member by looking at the
laws, rules and environments that impact our behavior. Policy, systems and environmental change is a way of
modifying the environment to make healthy choices practical and available to all community members. By changing
laws and shaping physical landscapes, a big impact can be made with little time and resources. By changing
policies, systems and/or environments, communities can help tackle health issues like obesity, diabetes, cancer and
other chronic diseases.

Conclusion
Approval of this grant application will allow the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services to
implement a policy, systems and environmental change focus that makes healthier choices a real, feasible option for
every community member by looking at the laws, rules and environments that impact our behavior. By influencing
policies, systems and/or environments, Gila County will have an additional effective medium to impact health
issues such as obesity, diabetes, cancer and other chronic diseases.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health & Emergency Services Division Director that the Board of Supervisors



It is the recommendation of the Health & Emergency Services Division Director that the Board of Supervisors
approve our application for the Arizona Nutrition Network SNAP-Ed Request for Grant Application No.
ADHS15-00004836 for the amount of $201,572 in funding each year for period of three years.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the electronic submittal of an Arizona Nutrition Network SNAP-Ed
Request for Grant Application (RFGA No. ADHS15-00004836) to the State of Arizona Department of Health Services
in the amount of $201,572 per year for a 3-year period which, if approved, will enable the Health and Emergency
Services Division to implement a policy, systems and environmental change focus to affect positive, healthy
behaviors.  (Josh Beck)

Attachments

Request for Grant Application No. ADHS15-00004836





























































   

ARF-3045     Regular Agenda Item      4. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Don McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: County Manager
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

3-17-2015 Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Sale of State-Owned Tax Deeded Land to the City of Globe-Parcel No. 208-03-102B

Background Information
The City of Globe (City) has been operating the Globe Active Adult Center at 579 South
Broad Street for many years and the City has invested approximately $8,000 annually
for upkeep, maintenance and improvements to the building.   In addition, the City has
acquired four adjacent parcels and has constructed additional improvements on those
parcels.  It was discovered last year that the Globe Active Adult Center is actually
comprised of six parcels of land.  The County Assessor would like for the City to begin
proceedings to combine all six parcels into one parcel for the Globe Active Adult
Center.  Four of the six parcels are owned by the City; however, one parcel is owned
by the State of Arizona and the remaining parcel is owned by the State of Arizona in
care of the Gila County Board of Supervisors.  Last year City Manager Brent Billingsley
submitted a request to Board of Supervisors' Chairman Mike Pastor requesting that
the County transfer ownership of two State-owned properties, tax parcel numbers
208-03-105 and 208-03-102B.  At that time it was discovered that the Board of
Supervisors only has authority to sell tax parcel number 208-03-102B, which is
owned by the State of Arizona in care of the Board of Supervisors.  Tax parcel number
208-03-105 is actually owned by the State of Arizona.  Since last year, the City has
been in contact with the State and is now working with the Arizona Department of
Transportation to acquire tax parcel number 208-03-105.  Mr. Billingsley recently
contacted County Manager Don McDaniel to re-visit the City's request to acquire tax
parcel number 208-03-102B.

Evaluation
On June 24, 2003, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 03-06-07 which
established a policy regarding sales of real property tax deeded to the State of Arizona. 
The following language is contained in the Resolution, "All properties held by the Gila
County Board of Supervisors for sale, as agent of the State of Arizona will be sold
for no less than 100% of the back taxes and fees.  The Board may waive this
requirement if a condition exists that warrants selling a parcel of land at a less



price."

The total lien amount owed on tax parcel number 208-03-102B is $5,486.69.  This
amount comprises the amount of past due taxes plus fees and penalties that have
been assessed by the County Treasurer.

Conclusion
The services provided by the Globe Active Adult Center has benefited the residents of
the City and southern Gila County for many years.  The City invests approximately
$8,000 per year for upkeep, maintenance and improvements to the building, and it
has invested additional money for other improvements related to the Globe Active
Adult Center.  It would be advantageous to Gila County to sell tax parcel number
208-03-102B at a minimal cost to the City of Globe to ultimately combine six parcels of
land into one parcel thereby reducing administrative costs at the Treasurer's Office
and Assessor's Office.

Recommendation
It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors sell tax parcel number 208-03-102B
to the City of Globe for $1.00, and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit
Claim Deed.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to sell State-owned tax parcel number 208-03-102B to
the City of Globe for $1.00 as it is a portion of land of which the Globe Active Adult
Center is situated; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Quit Claim Deed.  
(Don McDaniel)

Attachments
Quit Claim Deed for Parcel No. 208-03-102B
Request Letter from City of Globe
Pictures and Maps for Parcel No. 208-03-102B
Treasurer's Deed for Parcel No. 208-03-102B































   

ARF-3017     Regular Agenda Item      4. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Bryan Chambers, Deputy County Attorney/Civil Bureau Chief 
Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors
Department: County Attorney
Fiscal Year: 2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

January
2012-/January
2013

Grant?: No

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: Renewal

Information
Request/Subject
Consideration of the lawsuit Carson Construction Inc. v. Gila County, CV 201500006
regarding the Pine Creek Canyon Road Construction Project.  Pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4), the Board may vote to go into executive session
to receive legal advice from its attorney regarding this item and to discuss or consult
with the attorney of the public body in order to consider its position and instruct its
attorney regarding the public body's position in order to avoid or resolve litigation. 

Background Information
Carson Construction Inc. received the contract to complete the Pine Creek Canyon
Road Construction Project in 2012.  Carson claims that it was delayed in the project
because of issues involving utility easements which caused it to idle equipment and
incur financial losses in the amount of $155,019.00.  

On November 18, 2014, the Board of Supervisors met in Executive Session regarding
this issue.  After reconvening into the BOS  Regular Meeting, the Board voted to
continue this issue to the December 2, 2014, Regular Meeting, and at that time it will
consider voting to go into Executive Session to discuss this issue.

On December 2, 2014, the Board voted to deny Carson's claim.

On January 15, 2014, Carson filed an action in Gila County Superior Court making
the same allegations that it previously made in its Claim.

Evaluation
Gila County needs to file an Answer to the Complaint. 

Conclusion
Because Gila County has been served this Complaint, the Board of Supervisors should
direct its attorney as to how to Answer the Complaint on behalf of Gila County. 



Recommendation
The Board of Supervisors should go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. §
38-431.03(A)(3) and 38-431.03(A)(4) in order to receive legal advice from its attorney
regarding this item and to discuss or consult with the attorney of the public body in
order to consider its position and instruct its attorney regarding the public body's
position in order to avoid or resolve litigation. 

Suggested Motion
Move to go into executive session pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03(A)(3) and
38-431.03(A)(4) in order to receive legal advice from its attorney regarding a Complaint
from Carson Construction (CV 201500006) regarding the Pine Creek Canyon Road
Construction Project and to discuss or consult with the attorney of the public body in
order to consider its position and instruct its attorney regarding the public body's
position in order to avoid or resolve litigation.  Then, after executive session has
concluded move to direct the County Attorney's Office to proceed as directed in
executive session.
(Bryan Chambers)

Attachments
Denial Letter
Complaint





























   

ARF-3034     Consent Agenda Item      5. A.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

03-03-15 to
06-30-15

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Grant Award Contract CNA15-430 from the State of Arizona Constable Ethics,
Standards & Training Board Equipment Grant Program for Tasers.

Background Information
On January 13, 2015, Payson Regional Constable, Colt White, learned of a grant
opportunity offered by the State of Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards & Training
Board Equipment Grant Program.  The Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board
(CESTB) was accepting grant applications through noon on Friday, January 16, 2015,
to provide funding for equipment and training.

Once Constable White became aware of the grant funding opportunity, there was not
enough time to get the application on the Board of Supervisors' meeting agenda and be
able to meet the application deadline.  On January 15, 2015, Constable White hand
delivered a grant application in the amount of $4,884.95 to the CESTB, for the
purchase of four tasers with holsters, download kits, battery packs and cartridges.

Evaluation
The objective of the grant application is to receive funding to purchase four tasers with
holsters, download kits, battery packs and cartridges for the safety and security of the
Constables in Gila County.  The purchase of the tasers will aid in providing the
Constables a degree of confidence regarding their protection in a hazardous duty
situation, which allows them to execute their duties and responsibilities in the service
of court-related documents in a timely, safe, and secure manner.

On January 22, 2015, Gila County was notified by letter that the grant application had
been awarded in the amount requested, $4,884.95.  Along with the notification letter,
Grant Award Contract No. CNA15-430 was sent to Gila County for execution.  Per the
provisions of the grant award contract, Gila County agrees to retain, and require each
subcontractor to retain, all records relating to this contract for a period of five years;
and include with each reimbursement request a budget report and a brief narrative
report.  On a quarterly basis, until the project is completed and the contract is



terminated, Gila County is required to submit to CESTB, a budget report and a
narrative report, which shall include budget expenditures, in-kind expenditures and a
narrative detailing how grant funds were used to achieve project objectives to date as
outlined by the grantee in the grant application.  This grant does not require in-kind
expenditures.  The grant award will be disbursed as reimbursement for expenses
incurred in the completion of the project.

Conclusion
The Gila County Constables Office has been awarded a grant from the State of Arizona
Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board, in the amount of $4,884.95 to
purchase four tasers with holsters, download kits, battery packs and cartridges.  The
purchase of this equipment will aid in providing an additional measure of safety and
security for the Constables during the performance of their duties.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Gila County Constables Office that the Board of
Supervisors approve and accept Grant Award Contract CNA 15-430, from the State of
Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board, in the amount of $4,884.95 for
the purchase of four tasers with holsters, download kits, battery packs and cartridges,
for the period of March 3, 2015 through June 30, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Payson Regional Constable's submission of a grant application to the
State of Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board in the amount of
$4,884.95 to purchase four tasers with holsters, download kits, battery packs and
cartridges; accept the grant award in the amount of $4,884.95; and authorize the
Chairman's signature on Grant Award Contract No. CNA15-430.

Attachments
Grant Award Contract No. CNA 15-430-Tasers
Grant Application for Tasers
Legal Explanation









































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   

ARF-3035     Consent Agenda Item      5. B.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division
Department: Finance Division
Fiscal Year: 2014-2015 Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates
Begin & End: 

03-03-15 to
06-30-15

Grant?: Yes

Matching
Requirement?: 

No Fund?: New

Information
Request/Subject
Grant Award Contract No. CNA15-431 from the State of Arizona Constable Ethics,
Standards & Training Board Equipment Grant Program for Vests.

Background Information
On January 13, 2015, Payson Regional Constable, Colt White, learned of a grant
opportunity offered by the State of Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards & Training
Board Equipment Grant Program.  The Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board
(CESTB) was accepting grant applications through noon on Friday, January 16, 2015,
to provide funding for equipment and training.

Once Constable White became aware of the grant funding opportunity, there was not
enough time to get the application on the Board of Supervisors' meeting agenda and be
able to meet the application deadline.  On January 15, 2015, Constable White hand
delivered a grant application in the amount of $2,853.84 to the CESTB, for the
purchase of two ballistic vests with carriers.

Evaluation
The objective of the grant application is to receive funding to purchase two ballistic
vests, along with carriers, to replace body armor currently expired.  The purchase of
the vests will improve the safety and security of the Constables, by replacing expired
ballistic vests, which provide protection against a deadly force encounter.

On January 22, 2015, Gila County was notified by letter that the grant application had
been awarded in the amount requested, $2,853.84.  Along with the notification letter,
Grant Award Contract No. CNA15-431 was sent to Gila County for execution.  Per the
provisions of the grant award contract, Gila County agrees to retain, and require each
subcontractor to retain, all records relating to this contract for a period of five years;
and include with each reimbursement request a budget report and a brief narrative
report.  On a quarterly basis, until the project is completed and the contract is
terminated, Gila County is required to submit to CESTB, a budget report and a
narrative report, which shall include budget expenditures, in-kind expenditures and a



narrative detailing how grant funds were used to achieve project objectives to date, as
outlined by the grantee in the grant application.  This grant does not require in-kind
expenditures.  The grant award will be disbursed as reimbursement for expenses
incurred in the completion of the project.

Conclusion
The Gila County Constables Office has been awarded a grant from the State of Arizona
Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board, in the amount of $2,853.84 to
purchase two ballistic vests and carriers, to replace expired body armor.  The purchase
of this equipment will aid in providing an additional measure of safety and security for
the Constables during the performance of their duties.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Gila County Constables Office that the Board of
Supervisors approve and accept Grant Award Contract CNA15-431, from the State of
Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board, in the amount of $2,853.84,
for the purchase of two ballistic vests and carriers, for the period of March 3, 2015
through June 30, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of the Payson Regional Constable's submission of a grant application to the
State of Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board in the amount of
$2,853.84 to purchase two ballistic vests with carriers; accept the grant award in the
amount of $2,853.84; and authorize the Chairman's signature on Grant Award
Contract No. CNA15-431.

Attachments
Grant Award Contract No. CNA 15-431-Vests
Grant Application for Ballistic Vests
Legal Explanation







































 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3029     Consent Agenda Item      5. C.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Michael O'Driscoll, Director 
Submitted By: Josh Beck, PHEP Manager, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division Division: Health Services

Information
Request/Subject
Gila County Local Emergency Planning Committee Resignations and Appointments

Background Information
The Local Emergency Planning Committee is mandated under the Emergency Planning and Community
Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) sections 301-303 (42 USC 116) or 40 CFR part 355.  Arizona Revised Statute (A.R.S.)
§26-344 also outlines the requirements for local emergency planning committees.

Under EPCRA, Local Emergency Planning Committees (LEPCs) must develop an emergency response plan, review
the plan at least annually, and provide information about chemicals in the community to citizens. Plans are
developed by LEPCs with stakeholder participation. There is one LEPC for each of the more than 3,000 designated
local emergency planning districts. The LEPC membership must include (at a minimum):

Each LEPC appoints a chairperson and adopts procedural rules by which the LEPC will function, with an eye on the
required tasks and duties of an LEPC. These rules must include provisions for public notification of committee
activities, public meetings to discuss the emergency plan, public comments, response to such comments by the
committee, and distribution of the emergency plan. Each LEPC must establish procedures for receiving and
processing requests from the public for EPCRA information, including Tier Two information. Such procedures shall
include the designation of an official to serve as coordinator for information. Federal and state law require each
LEPC to review its emergency plan at least annually in a public meeting, or more frequently as changed
circumstances in the community or at any facility may require.

•Elected state and local officials
•Police, fire, civil defense, and public health professionals
•Environment, transportation, and hospital officials
•Facility representatives
•Representatives from community groups and the media

The required elements of a community emergency response plan include:
•Identification of facilities and transportation routes of extremely hazardous substances
•Description of emergency response procedures, on and off site
•Designation of a community coordinator and facility emergency coordinator(s) to implement the plan
•Outline of emergency notification procedures
•Description of how to determine the probable affected area and population by releases
•Description of local emergency equipment and facilities and the persons responsible for them
•Outline of evacuation plans
•A training program for emergency responders (including schedules)
•Methods and schedules for exercising emergency response plans

Under A.R.S. §26-344, the "commission", which in Arizona it is known as the Arizona Emergency Response
Commission (AERC), is responsible for designating emergency planning districts and upon establishments of the
districts, it appoints members of local emergency planning committees.  Per statute, the Gila County Board of
Supervisors nominated the initial members of the Gila County Local Emergency Planning Committee (GCLEPC) to
the AERC for appointment.  The statutes provide that once the Board of Supervisors nominated the initial members,
any subsequent nominations for appointment are to be made by the GCLEPC Chairman on a majority vote of the
GCLEPC.  The nominations for appointment are then submitted to the AERC.

Evaluation
To inform the Board of Supervisors of resignations and new Local Emergency Planning Committee potential
appointments.

Conclusion
On October 13, 2014, Debra Williams resigned as the GCLEPC Coordinator, and on February 4, 2015, Michael



On October 13, 2014, Debra Williams resigned as the GCLEPC Coordinator, and on February 4, 2015, Michael
O'Driscoll resigned as the GCLEPC Chairman.  John Armer, GCLEPC Member representing law enforcement, and
David Wales, GCLEPC Member representing industry also no longer serve on this Commission.

It is appropriate for the Board of Supervisors to acknowledge the resignations of Debra Williams, Michael O'Driscoll,
John Armer and David Wales from the GCLEPC, and the nominations of Keith Thompson as Chairman and Todd
Whitney as Coordinator of the GCLEPC.  There are two current vacancies on the Commission which represent law
enforcement and industry.  Emergency Services Division staff will be working with the GCLEPC Chairman to fill the
vacancies and will provide an update to the Board of Supervisors when they have been filled.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Health & Emergency Services Division Director that the Board of Supervisors
acknowledge the resignations of Debra Williams, Michael O'Driscoll, John Armer and David Wales from the GCLEPC
and the following nominations for appointment to the GCLEPC as of March 3, 2015: Keith Thompson, Gila County
Sheriff's Office Lieutenant, as Chairman; and Todd Whitney, Emergency Management/Public Health Emergency
Preparedness Planner for the Gila County Health and Emergency Services Division, as Coordinator.  After the Board
of Supervisors has acknowledged the nominations for appointment, they will be submitted to the AERC.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the resignations of Debra Williams, Michael O'Driscoll, John Armer and David Wales from the
Gila County Local Emergency Planning Committee (GCLEPC); and the nominations of appointment of Keith
Thompson, Gila County Sheriff's Office Lieutenant, as GCLEPC Chairman, and Todd Whitney, Gila County
Emergency Services Division Emergency Management/Public Health Emergency Preparedness Planner, as GCLEPC
Coordinator effective as of March 3, 2015, and upon approval by the Arizona Emergency Response Commission.

Attachments

GC Local Emergency Planning Committee-Proposed 3-3-15
O'Driscoll Resignation
Williams Resignation
O'Driscoll Appointment
Williams Appointment
LEPC 01-26-15 Minutes



 

GILA COUNTY LOCAL EMERGENCY PLANNING COMMITTEE 

 (Proposed to the BOS on 3/3/15) 

 

Name of Member & 
Appointment Info.1 

Appointment 
Designation2 

Appointment Type3 &  
BOS Approval Date 

Time Served Prior 
 to Current 

Appointment 

Term of Incumbent (End 
date must match end 

date of Term of Office) 

Term of Office 
(Only change when new 

term cycle begins 

Michael O’Driscoll, 
Chairman 

C A (02/21/12)  02/21/12 to present 
Resigned 2/4/15 

Per bylaws, no specific 
term of office 

Keith Thompson 
Chairman 

C B (03/03/15)  
(Michael O’Driscoll) 

- 03/03/15 to present  
(Committee appointment) 

Per bylaws, no specific 
term of office 

John Marcanti,  
Vice-Chairman 

C A (01/22/13) - 01/22/13 to present Per bylaws, no specific 
term of office 

Debra Williams,  
Coordinator 

C A - 09/22/04 to present 
Resigned 110/13/14 

Per bylaws, no specific 
term of office 

Todd Whitney, 
Coordinator 

C B (03/03/15) 
(Debra Williams) 

- 03/03/15 to present 
(Committee appointment) 

Per bylaws, no specific 
term of office 

John Armer,  
Member-Law Enforcement 

C A (10/07/08) - 10/07/08 to present 
Resigned 

Per bylaws, no specific 
term of office 

VACANCY 
Member-Law Enforcement 

     

A.J. Howell,  
Member-Fire Fighting 

C A - 09/13/99 to present Per bylaws, no specific 
term of office 

Nick Renon,  
Member-Fire Fighting 

C A - 11/20/08 to present Per bylaws, no specific 
term of office 

Carmen Corso,  
Member-Community 

C A - 11/20/08 to present Per bylaws, no specific 
term of office 

David Wales, 
Member-Industry 

C A - 11/19/09 to present 
Resigned 

Per bylaws, no specific 
term of office 

VACANCY 
Member-Industry 

     

 
1
  Appointment Information: 

A. Date of creation:  May 15, 1989 
B. Initial members of the Committee were nominated by the Board of Supervisors (BOS) and approved by the Arizona Emergency Response Commission (AZERC).  The BOS may also appoint 

additional members if a quorum of the remaining Committee members cannot be convened within 30 days of vacancy(s) occurring.  Subsequent nominations by the Committee members 
or other changes in membership shall be made by the Committee and forwarded to the AZERC for approval. 

C. Membership shall include, at a minimum, representation from each of the groups or organizations cited in Section 301, Title III of SARA, as follows:  elected state and local officials; law 
enforcement, civil defense, fire fighting, first aid, health, local environmental, hospital and transportation personnel; broadcast and print media; community groups to include non-profit 
and volunteer agencies; and owners and operators of facilities subject to the requirement of the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act (EPCRA) and A.R.S. § 26-344.   



2
  Appointment Designation: 

A.     Statutory District Appointment:  Member must reside within the supervisorial district boundary from which he/she is appointed. 
         B.     Supervisory Appointment:  Member unrestricted by district. 

C. Joint Appointment:  Membership is comprised of appointments from different jurisdictions.  Appointments made by other entities are acknowledged by the Board of Supervisors. 
D. County at Large:  Members are unrestricted by district and can be recommended by appointment by any supervisorial district or by the committee. 
E. Alternate Members:  As defined by individual committee criteria. 

3
  Appointment Type 

A. New Appointment 
B. Existing vacancy created by (provide name) 
C. Reappointment (include number of years/months served prior to most recent appointment in right-hand column) 



 

 

 

 

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities may be requested.  
Countywide TTY   (928) 425-0839 

 

 

Health & Emergency Services 

Prevent. Promote. Protect. 
 

GILA COUNTY DIVISION of HEALTH and EMERGENCY SERVICES 
5515 South Apache Ave., Suite 100, Globe, AZ  85501   

PHONE: (928) 402-8811   FAX: (928) 425-0794 
 

 

 
 

February 4, 2015 

 

 

To: LEPC Committee 

 

Subject: Resignation 

 

 

Please accept this as official notification of my resignation as the LEPC Committee Chairman.  

 

Warm Regards, 

 

 
 

Michael O’Driscoll, Director 

Gila County Health & Emergency Services. 
 

 

 

 
 



Debra L. Williams, Emergency Manager 
Gila County Emergency Management 
5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 400 
Globe, AZ 85501 
 
 
 
October 13, 2014 

 
Michael O’Driscoll 
Chairman, Gila County LEPC 
5515 S. Apache Avenue, Suite 400 
Globe, AZ 85501 

Dear Chairman: 

It is with sincere regret that I must submit my resignation as the GCLEPC 
Coordinator effective October 13, 2014. 

It has been an honor and a priviledge to serve the citizens of Gila County for the past 
9 years. 

Sincerely, 

Debra L. Williams 

cc:  Vice-Chairman 
 AZSERC 



Arizona Emergency Response Commission 
5636 East McDowell Road   Phoenix, AZ 85008-3495 

                 Phone: 602-464-6346 
             1-800-411-ADEM (2336) 
                 Fax: 602-464-6519 

                                                            E-Mail: AZSERC@azdema.gov 
Web Site: https://www.azserc.org or http://www.dem.azdema.gov/ 

 
 

Janice K. Brewer, Governor  Louis B. Trammell, Chair
Mark Howard, Executive Director

NOTICE OF LEPC APPOINTMENT, RESIGNATION, OR REMOVAL 
 

NOMINEE/RESIGNEE IS IN GROUP #: (Please place an X in the appropriate group below) 

  Group I:   Elected State and Local Officials 
  Group II:  Law Enforcement, Civil Defense, Emergency Management, Firefighting,           

Emergency Medical, First Aid, Local Environmental, Hospital and Transportation 

 Group III:  Broadcast and Print Media 

 Group IV:  Community Groups 
 Group V:  Owners and Operators of facilities subject to the requirements of EPCRA 

 
APPOINTED:           RESIGNED:         REMOVED FOR CAUSE:          Reason: _________________ 
DATE: ________         DATE: ________     DATE: ____________                             
 
DATE: NAME OF PERSON COMPLETING FORM: 

NAME: TITLE: 

ORGANIZATION: 

ADDRESS: 

CITY: COUNTY: ZIP CODE: 

PHONE: FAX: 

E-MAIL: SIGNATURE IF FAXED / MAILED: 

OTHER INFORMATION: 
 

AZSERC ACTION ONLY: 
Interim approval granted; Formal vote to be held at the next commission meeting scheduled for __________________ 
 
Signature:______________________     Date: ______________     Received: _____________      By: ____________ 
 
                                                                                                            Entered: ______________      By: ____________ 
 

 

dwilliams
Text Box
02/21/2012



S:\Emergency Management\PREPAREDNESS\EMPG\LEPC\Membership\WilliamsD_Appointment.doc 

Arizona Emergency Response Commission 
5636 East McDowell Road 
Phoenix, AZ 85008-3495 

 
 

Janet Napolitano, Governor                                                                       Frank F. Navarrete, Chair 
Daniel Roe, Executive Director 

 

Phone: (602) 231-6346        E-Mail: AZSERC@azdema.gov                         Fax: (602) 392-7519 
1-800-411-ADEM (2336)                      Pager: (602) 215-5718 

 

NOTICE OF LEPC APPOINTMENT, RESIGNATION, OR REMOVAL 
 

NOMINEE/RESIGNEE IS IN GROUP #: (Please select a group below) 

 Group I:   Elected State and Local Officials 
    X Group II:  Law Enforcement, Civil Defense, Emergency Management, Firefighting, 
   Emergency Medical, First Aide, Local Environmental, Hospital and  
   Transportation 
 Group III:  Broadcast and Print Media 
 Group IV:  Community Groups 
 Group V:  Owners and Operators of facilities subject to the requirements of EPCRA 
 
APPOINTED    X         RESIGNED            REMOVED FOR CAUSE             Reason:    
Date: 09/22/2004        Date:                        Date:                                                                                                                
                                                                                                    
DATE: 

03/15/2005 
NAME OF PERSON COMPLETING FORM: 

Debra Williams 
NAME: 

Debra Williams 
TITLE: Gila County Emergency Management Planner 
              LEPC Coordinator 

ORGANIZATION: 
Gila County 

ADDRESS: 
1400 East Ash Street 

CITY: 
Globe 

COUNTY: 
Gila 

ZIP CODE: 
85501 

PHONE: 
928-425-3231 x8763 

FAX: 
928-425-7714 

E-MAIL: 
dwilliams@co.gila.az.us 

OTHER INFORMATION: 
 
AZSERC ACTION ONLY: 
Interim approval ranted; Formal vote to be held at next commission meeting schedule for ___________________ 
 
Signature: _______________________                  Date: _____________________                 Received: ___________ By:______ 
 
                                                                                                                                                      Entered: ____________ By: ______ 
 

 

 
 

 

mailto:AZSERC@azdema.gov


 

 
Health & Emergency Services 

Prevent. Promote. Protect. 
 

GILA COUNTY DIVISION of HEALTH and EMERGENCY SERVICES 
5515 South Apache Ave., Suite 400, Globe, AZ  85501   

PHONE: (928) 402-8811   FAX: (928) 425-7714 
 

 
LEPC “Back to the Basics” Meeting – Monday January 26, 2015 10am to 2pm 

Meeting minutes italicized in blue 
 
10:00 - 10:30am  

a) Call to Order – Welcoming remarks 
b) Introductions to Gila County Emergency Management 

 

Joshua Beck 

 
10:30 – 11:30am  

a) APEX Training 
In order to meet the required statute, our LEPC still needs a media 
person to join the committee. 

 

 
Mark Howard 

 
11:30 – 11:45am 

a) Break  
b) Grab Food for Working Lunch 

 

 
All 

 
11:45 – 12:45pm 

a) APEX Training Continued 
 

 
Mark Howard 
 

 
12:45 – 1:00pm 

a) Review Bylaws 
b) Begin Discussion about LEPC Committee Members 
Michael O’Driscoll Chairman is resigning his position.  Keith 
Thompson has offered to take his place.  Committee confirmed Keith as 
Chairman.   Debra Williams Coordinator resigned her position.  
Committee approves appointment of Todd Whitney.  Josh Beck will 
proceed with the proper paperwork, and submit both to the BOS for 
approval. 

 

 
Joshua Beck 

 
1:00 – 1:10pm 

a) Break 
 

 
All 

 
1:10 – 2:00pm  Joshua Beck 

 
 

 



a) Review Bylaws Continued 
Bylaws are in need of an update.  Next meeting to include a discussion of a committee to update the 
current Bylaws.  Updated Bylaws should include NIMS compliance for officers. 

 
 

b) County Emergency Response Plan “moving forward” 
Next meeting to include a discussion of a committee to review current LEPC plans.  Austin Jones 
expressed interest. 
c) Call for current events/updates. 
Next meeting to include a discussion of a committee to improve community preparedness.  Tim 
Howard expressed interest. 
 
Interest raised in hosting the HAZMAT awareness class in Gila County.  This 6 hour course would 
be a great experience for our LEPC.  Josh Beck will begin working on bringing the course to the 
area. 
 
Northern CERT team interested in some iteration of a commodity flow study for the Payson area.  
This could be another possible committee? 
 
d) Set next meeting date – Information/Discussion/Action 
Josh Beck will create a doodle poll to inquire about the best time to hold the next meeting. 
 
e) Adjourn 
Motion to adjourn – Joshua Beck 
Second – Mac Feezor 

 

 
 



   

ARF-3028     Consent Agenda Item      5. D.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Director 
Submitted By: Kelly Jones, Administrative Clerk Specialist, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Fairground Facilities

Information
Request/Subject
Phoenix Metro Bicycle Club Gila County Courthouse Parking Lot Use Request, March 14, 2015

Background Information
In past years, Gila County has allowed the Courthouse parking area to be used for a rest stop for bicycle
riders. Prior to the use of the parking lot, the Bicycle Club has always met all Gila County requirements
by filling out and submitting the required paperwork. To date, no incidents or issues have occurred on
County property. The Bicycle Club also orders a Port-a-John from local vendors to be used for the rest
stop.

Evaluation
This is a public event with local participation and by allowing the Courthouse parking lot to be used for
a rest stop, it shows goodwill and support of this community event. The Bicycle Club has met Gila
County's requirements with regard to filling out and submitting the required paperwork for this
upcoming event.

Conclusion
Copies of the Request of Use Letter, Building Use Application Form, Waiver of Liability for Use of
Facilities, and Certificate of Insurance have been submitted and are attached to this agenda item.

Recommendation
Public Works recommends that the Board of Supervisors give permission for the Phoenix Metro Bicycle
Club to use the Courthouse parking area as a rest stop on March 14, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of a request by the Phoenix Metro Bicycle Club to use the Courthouse parking area as a rest
stop for a bike ride on March 14, 2015.

Attachments

PMBC Building Use App
PMBC Letter 
PMBC Cert of Ins
Waiver











   

ARF-3014     Consent Agenda Item      5. E.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan 
Submitted By: Leitha Griffin, Administrative Assistant, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division Division: Administration

Information
Request/Subject
Intergovernmental Agreement Renewal between Gila County and the Town of Mammoth.

Background Information
Access Points are employment information centers which were launched by the Department of Labor
under the Workforce Investment Act.  The initiative was part of an effort to create local outreach centers
where job seekers could access workforce development services in their local communities.  This concept
created a unique opportunity for community agencies and the One-Stop System to engage and partner
to promote access to the workforce system.

An incentive grant from the Arizona Department of Economic Security shall fund this initiative.

Evaluation
While each Access Point offers a unique set of resources (depending on the participating partners), all
Access Points offer free computer and Internet access for the purpose of job searching.  Access Points
connect job seekers to both employment and community resources in a convenient location and close to
home.

Gila County agrees to provide: 

access to employment resources;
training to help job seekers with job search;
personal contacts in and connections to the One-Stop Centers, staff and key partners;
inspection of the locations and signage for location;
training of staff to help job seekers with job search activities;
equipment maintenance;
supplies, Access Point signage; and
desktop computers (Microsoft Program with Internet access), printer, computer desk and
chair

(Access Point) agrees to: 

host a publicly accessible Access point consisting of a computer with Internet access and
Point of Contact trained by workforce system staff;
help job seekers as needed and staff availability;
publicize job seeker services to the Access Point's community;
send staff to initial training;
submit sign-in sheets monthly to document activities;
assure that it will take reasonable precautions to ensure hardware, software, and/or other
equipment remain secure and in good repair;
abide by all applicable federal, state and local laws; and
refer customers to the One-Stop and supportive services as needed.

Conclusion
The purpose of this Intergovernmental Agreement is to continue to provide a local Access Point at



The purpose of this Intergovernmental Agreement is to continue to provide a local Access Point at
the Town of Mammoth Library.  Under the Workforce Investment Act, the "Access Point" model consists
of local entities/organizations and/or businesses where job services can be provided, assisted by trained
individuals.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Services Division Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors
approve this Intergovernmental Agreement Renewal for the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30,
2015.

Suggested Motion
Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement renewal between Gila County and the Town of Mammoth,
whereby the Town of Mammoth Library will continue to be a designated "Access Point" under the
Workforce Investment Act for the period of July 1, 2014, through June 30, 2015.

Attachments
IGA Town of Mammoth
Legal Explanation













 

 

GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY 
Bradley D. Beauchamp 

 

Re: County Attorney’s Office approval of IGA pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D). 

 

To whom it may concern: 

 

 The County Attorney’s Office has reviewed the Intergovernmental Agreement attached to 

this agenda item and has determined that it is in its “proper form” and  “is within the powers and 

authority granted under the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement unit” 

pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952(D).   

 

Explanation of the Gila County Attorney’s Office Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA) Review 
 

 

  A.R.S. § 11-952(D) requires that  

 

every agreement or contract involving any public agency or public 

procurement unit of this state . . . before its execution, shall be 

submitted to the attorney for each such public agency or public 

procurement unit, who shall determine whether the agreement is in 

proper form and is within the powers and authority granted under 

the laws of this state to such public agency or public procurement 

unit. 

 

 In performing this review, the County Attorney’s Office reviews IGAs to see that 

they are in “proper form” prior to their execution.  “Proper form” means that the 

contract conforms to fundamental contract law, conforms to specific legislative 

requirements, and is within the powers and authority granted to the public agency.  It 

does not mean that the County Attorney’s Office approves of or supports the policy 

objectives contained in the IGA.  That approval is solely the province of the public 

agency through its elected body.    



 

 Likewise, this approval is not a certification that the IGA has been properly 

executed.  Proper execution can only be determined after all the entities entering into 

the IGA have taken legal action to approve the IGA.  There is no statutory 

requirement for the County Attorney’s Office to certify that IGAs are properly 

executed. 

  

 Nonetheless, it is imperative for each public agency to ensure that each IGA is 

properly executed because A.R.S. § 11-952(F) requires that “[a]ppropriate action … 

applicable to the governing bodies of the participating agencies approving or 

extending the duration of the … contract shall be necessary before any such 

agreement, contract or extension may be filed or become effective.”  This can be done 

by ensuring that the governing body gives the public proper notice of the meeting 

wherein action will be taken to approve the IGA, that the item is adequately described 

in the agenda accompanying the notice, and that the governing body takes such 

action. Any questions regarding whether the IGA has been properly executed may be 

directed to the County Attorney’s Office. 

 

 Proper execution of IGAs is important because A.R.S. § 11-952(H) provides that 

“[p]ayment for services under this section shall not be made unless pursuant to a fully 

approved written contract.”  Additionally, A.R.S. § 11-952(I) provides that “[a] 

person who authorizes payment of any monies in violation of this section is liable for 

the monies paid plus twenty per cent of such amount and legal interest from the date 

of payment.”  

 

 The public agency or department submitting the IGA for review has the 

responsibility to read and understand the IGA in order to completely understand its 

obligations under the IGA if it is ultimately approved by the public entity’s board.  

This is because while the County Attorney’s Office can approve the IGA as to form, 

the office may not have any idea whether the public agency has the capacity to 

actually comply with its contractual obligations.  Also, the County Attorney’s Office 

does not monitor IGA compliance.  Hence the public entity or submitting department 

will need to be prepared to monitor their own compliance.  A thorough knowledge of 

the provisions of the IGA will be necessary to monitor compliance. 

 

 Before determining whether an IGA contract “is in proper form,” the County 

Attorney’s Office will answer any questions or concerns the public agency has about 

the contract.  It is the responsibility of the public agency or department submitting the 

IGA for review to ask any specific questions or address any concerns it has about the 

IGA to the County Attorney’s Office at the same time they submit the IGA for 

review.  Making such an inquiry also helps improve the County Attorney’s Office 

review of the IGA because it will help focus the review on specific issues that are of 

greatest concern to the public agency.  Failing to make such an inquiry when the 

agency does have issues or concerns will decrease the ability of the County 

Attorney’s Office to meaningfully review the IGA.   

 



   
ARF-3036     Consent Agenda Item      5. F.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  
Reporting
Period:

January 2015

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region 
Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region,

Justice Court-Payson Regional

Information
Subject
Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for January
2015

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
January 2015













   
ARF-3027     Consent Agenda Item      5. G.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  
Reporting
Period:

January 2015

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court 
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court,

Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of the Superior Court's Office Monthly Report for January 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Clerk of the Superior Court's Office.

Attachments
Clerk of Superior Court January 2015 Report



















   
ARF-3031     Consent Agenda Item      5. H.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  
Reporting
Period:

January 2015

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr 
Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr, Justice

Court-Globe Regional

Information
Subject
Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office monthly report for January
2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the January 2015 monthly activity report submitted
by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's Office.

Attachments
Globe Justice Court Report for January, 2015











   
ARF-3043     Consent Agenda Item      5. I.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  
Reporting
Period:

January 27, 2015

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 
Submitted By: Laurie Kline, Deputy Clerk, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Information
Subject
January 27, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes. 

Suggested Motion
Approval of the January 27, 2015, Board of Supervisors' meeting minutes.

Attachments
01-27-15 BOS Meeting Minutes



BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  January 27, 2015 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR                                              MARIAN E. SHEPPARD 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN  By: Laurie J. Kline 
Vice-Chairman                                                              Deputy Clerk 
 
JOHN D. MARCANTI                                                 Gila County Courthouse 
Member         Globe, Arizona                          
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV); John D. Marcanti, Member; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., County Manager;   
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian; Marian E. Sheppard, 
Clerk of the Board; and Laurie J. Kline, Deputy Clerk. 
  
A County attorney was not present at this meeting. 
 
Item 1 – CALL TO ORDER - PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

  
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a work session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors’ hearing room.  Sherry Grice led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 – REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
A.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution 15-01-01 that will 
approve and authorize County staff to issue the financing package along 
with any other necessary agreements, instruments and documents; and 
approve the sale, execution and delivery of up to $2,000,000 in pledged 
revenue obligations.   
 
Jeff Hessenius, Finance Division Director, advised that it is necessary to adopt 
a resolution in order to proceed with the final actions required to secure 
financing for the Copper Administration Building.  The financing package RFP 
(Request for Proposals) was sent to approximately 18 different financial 
institutions and responses are due by mid-February for review and analysis in 
order to determine which financing package is best for the County.  He 
introduced Mark Reader, Stifel, Nicolaus & Company Managing Director, who 
stated that Mr. Hessenius accurately summarized this agenda item.  Mr. 
Reader stated that the RFP is “on the street” and is due in approximately 10 

Page 1 of 5 
 



days, so it’s just a matter of evaluating the bids once they are received and 
reporting the information back to the County.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin thanked Mr. Reader for his expertise in assisting the 
County with this project.  Supervisor Marcanti acknowledged that this action is 
another step in the process to move this project forward.  Mr. Hessenius added 
that there has been an opportunity for the citizens to provide comments via 
email through the Gila County website as to this issue and, to date, there have 
been none received.  Chairman Pastor stated that there have been numerous 
inquiries received from the public regarding the Copper Administration 
Building.   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Marcanti, the 
Board unanimously adopted Resolution 15-01-01 that approved and 
authorized County staff to issue the financing package along with any other 
necessary agreements, instruments and documents; and approved the sale, 
execution and delivery of up to $2,000,000 in pledged revenue obligations.   
 
Chairman Pastor thanked Mr. Reader for being present at the Board meeting 
and then stated that although this has been a long process, it has 
demonstrated the County’s efforts to provide transparency for the citizens of 
the County.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board 
of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
B.  Information/Discussion on a revised draft Curfew Ordinance for future 
Board of Supervisors' approval.   
 
Mike Pastor, District II Supervisor, provided a brief history regarding a curfew 
ordinance and introduced Sherry Rice, Vice-Chairman of the Copper Basin 
Safe Kids Chapter, Arizona.   
 
Ms. Rice stated that she presented information regarding adopting a curfew 
ordinance in Gila County at a Board of Supervisors’ meeting in 2013; however, 
no action was taken by the Board at that time.  She requested that the Board 
of Supervisors adopt a curfew ordinance for unincorporated areas of Gila 
County that would apply to youths under the age of 18.  She read aloud a 
statement and stated that 9 of 15 Arizona counties have a youth curfew 
ordinance in place, as follows:  Cochise, Greenlee, La Paz, Maricopa, Mohave, 
Navajo, Pima, Yavapai, and Yuma.  She reviewed highlights of the 2014 Arizona 
Youth Survey for Gila County provided by the Arizona Criminal Justice 
Commission. 
 
Chairman Pastor stated that he has observed that many 8th grade students 
seem to be susceptible to a lot of peer pressure and outside influences.  He 
commented that it is favorable that Ms. Rice has spoken to Sheriff Adam 
Shepherd, who was not opposed to the implementation of a curfew ordinance.  

Page 2 of 5 
 



Chairman Pastor advised that he received letters from Mitch Malkovich and 
Linda Pearce expressing their support of a curfew ordinance being adopted.  
Chairman Pastor also conveyed that local ranchers living in the Six Shooter 
Canyon area in Globe are concerned with the number of parties with bon fires 
and underage drinking that are taking place on U.S. Forest Service land that is 
located near their properties, and the potential risk of fires.  
 
Vice-Chairman Martin stated, “Kids aren’t different than in the past; parents 
are different.”   She supports adopting a curfew ordinance, but wants to ensure 
that there is consistency with regard to enforcement of the ordinance.    
 
Supervisor Marcanti thanked Ms. Rice for her concern and interest in the 
youth in Gila County.  He met with Sheriff Adam Shepherd and the 
Undersheriff with the intent of obtaining statistical information indicating that 
there is a need for a curfew ordinance; however, no such information was 
available.  Supervisor Marcanti’s primary concern is the cost and manpower to 
enforce a curfew ordinance.  He advised that the County would need to have a 
hearing officer to hear cases, implement an appeals process, and assign staff 
responsibility to oversee and follow through with the fines and or punishment 
imposed on youth offenders.  He stated, “I don’t see how it (curfew ordinance) 
will help the community.”   
 
Chairman Pastor referred to Section VI of the draft curfew ordinance that is 
entitled “Enforcement” and stated that he felt that it was “pretty liberal.”  He 
asked County Manager Don McDaniel to address the enforcement section of 
the draft curfew ordinance. 
 
Mr. McDaniel stated that Sections V and VI of the draft curfew ordinance 
allows an officer, who arrests a minor for a curfew violation, to take a great 
amount of time to actually question the youth as to the reason the youth is out 
late at night.  He stated that the initial draft curfew ordinance was presented to 
the Board on January 29, 2013, during a work session.  At that time the draft 
ordinance was sent to the Sheriff’s Office as well as the Probation Department 
to receive comments, and those comments are included in the revised draft 
curfew ordinance which is attached to the agenda item.  He also reiterated that 
the letters submitted by Linda Pearce and Mitch Malkovich are in favor of 
adopting the ordinance.   
 
Mr. McDaniel then reviewed the most recent revisions to the draft curfew 
ordinance.  When “County” is defined in the ordinance under “Jurisdiction,” it 
includes all of United States Forest Service land, all of Bureau of Land 
Management areas and State-owned land, but specifically excludes 
incorporated communities and Tribal Reservation land.  Another significant 
change is the hours of enforcement which are Sunday through Thursday 10 
p.m. to 6 a.m. and Friday and Saturday from 12:00 a.m. to 5 p.m.  Regarding 
valid defenses a youth may present to an arresting officer, Section III of the 

Page 3 of 5 
 



draft ordinance outlines eight permissible reasons to be out during the curfew 
hours, as follows:   
 
1.  Accompanied by the minor’s parent, guardian or an adult having 
supervisorial custody. 
2.  With prior written permission of the parent or guardian, or an adult having 
supervisorial custody, in a motor vehicle involved in interstate travel. 
3.  With prior written permission of the parent or guardian, or an adult having 
supervisorial custody, in an employment activity or going to or returning home 
from an employment activity without any detour or stop. 
4.  Involved in an emergency. 
5.  With prior written permission of the parent or guardian, or an adult having 
supervisorial custody, attending an official school, religious or other 
recreational activity supervised by adults and sponsored by any school district, 
governmental entity, a civic organization or other similar entity that takes 
responsibility for the minor, or going to or returning from without any detour or 
stop, an official school, religious or other recreational activity supervised by 
adults and sponsored by any school district, governmental entity, a civic 
organization or other similar entity that takes responsibility for the minor. 
6.  With prior written permission of the parent or guardian, or an adult having 
supervisorial custody, exercising the First Amendment right of free exercise of 
religion or freedom of speech protected by the United States Constitution. 
7.  With prior written permission of the parent or guardian, or an adult having 
supervisorial custody, was engaged in reasonable, legitimate and specific 
business and/or activity. 
8.  Married or had been married, or had disabilities of a minor removed, or 
emancipation ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction. 
 
Mr. McDaniel added that the ordinance is written in a community friendly 
manner and that education and resources are offered to parents and children 
of the community.   
 
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she is conflicted with this issue, but 
understands that an action needs to be taken by the Board of Supervisors at a 
future meeting.   
 
Chairman Pastor requested Mr. McDaniel to schedule this issue on a future 
Board meeting agenda for the Board to take an action to adopt or not adopt a 
curfew ordinance.  He also encouraged members of the public to contact any of 
the three Supervisors with any questions or comments.   
 
Item 3 – CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address the Board of Supervisors on any 
issue within the jurisdiction of the Board of Supervisors. Board members 
may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the agenda. 
Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(H), at the 

Page 4 of 5 
 



conclusion of an open call to the public, individual members of the Board 
of Supervisors may respond to criticism made by those who have 
addressed the Board, may ask staff to review a matter or may ask that a 
matter be put on a future agenda for further discussion and decision at a 
future date.  
 
There were no comments from the public. 
 
Item 4 – At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the County Manager 
may present a brief summary of current events. No action may be taken 
on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and the County Manager presented information on 
current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:47 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board 

Page 5 of 5 
 



   
ARF-2926     Consent Agenda Item      5. J.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  
Reporting
Period:

02/03/15, 02/10/15, 02/17/15, and 02/24/15

Submitted For: Shelley McPherson, HR and Risk Management Director 
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources Assistant, Human

Resources Department

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of February 3, 2015, February
10, 2015, February 17, 2015, and February 24, 2015.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the Human Resources reports for the weeks of
February 3, 2015, February 10, 2015, February 17, 2015, and February
24, 2015.

Attachments
HR Summary Report
02/03/15 Human Resources Report
02/10/15 Human Resources Report
02/17/15 Human Resources Report
02/24/15 Human Resources Report



Summary
Year To 
Date Jan‐15 Feb‐15 Mar‐15 Apr‐15 May‐15 Jun‐15 Jul‐15 Aug‐15 Sep‐15 Oct‐15 Nov‐15 Dec‐15

Human Resources Action Items

DEPARTURES 26 8 18

NEW HIRES REGULAR STATUS 18 9 9

NEW HIRES TEMPORARY STATUS 5 3 2

NEW VOLUNTEERS 0 0 0

DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS 10 6 4

END PROBATIONARY PERIOD 4 2 2

OTHER ACTIONS 13 11 2

REQUEST TO POST 21 7 14

  Total Transactions 97 46 51 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
FEBRUARY 3, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Austin Payne – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 01/26/15 – General Fund – DOH 
10/20/14 

2. Judith Moss – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – 01/23/15 – General Fund – DOH 
12/11/06 

3. Sabil Fitzhugh – Payson Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – 01/26/15 – General 
Fund – DOH 02/11/13 

4. Wesley Wilson – Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – 04/30/15 – Public 
Works Fund – DOH 03/26/03 

5. Lee Austin Jones – Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Supervisor – 03/19/15 – Public 
Works Fund – DOH 03/29/93 

6. Sally Denny – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 01/22/15 – General Fund – 
DOH 05/12/14 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

7. Micah Wheeler – Assessor’s Office – Property Appraiser 1 – 02/23/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Susan Aliprandini  

8. Austin Livingood – Public Works – Road Maintenance Worker – 02/09/15 – Public Works Fund – 
Replacing Larry Perez 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICES: 
 

9. Bryan Whitney – Health and Emergency Services – Temporary Public Health Emergency Preparedness 
Planner – 02/09/15 – Bio Terrorism Program Fund  

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

10. Morgan Epperson – Community Development – Permit Technician – 02/04/15 – General Fund 
 
OTHER ACTIONS: 
 

11. Leslie Mora – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Assistant – 06/30/15 – Various 
Funds – Change in fund codes 

12. Sally Denny – Clerk of Superior Court – Courtroom Clerk Technician – 06/30/14 – General Fund - 
Classification and Compensation grade and salary update 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

13. Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – Vacated by Carol Tanner 
14. Assessor’s Office – Chief Deputy Assessor – Vacated by Lisa Romo 
15. Public Works – Vehicle and Equipment Maintenance Supervisor – Vacated by Lee Austin Jones 
16. Health and Emergency Services – Administrative Clerk Senior  

 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
FEBRUARY 10, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Austin Livingood – Public Works – Road Maintenance Worker – 02/09/15 – Public Works Fund – DOH 
02/09/15 

2. Sandra Estrada – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer Lieutenant – 02/06/15 – General Fund – DOH 
08/26/96 

3. Tyler Pearce – Public Works – Automotive Service Worker – 02/03/15 – Public Works Fund – DOH 
01/06/14 

4. Debora Briseno – Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist – 01/30/15 – Workforce 
Investment Act(.10)/Workforce Investment Act Programs (.90) – DOH 07/01/13 

5. Lynette Hale – Community Services – Temporary WEX Participant – 01/23/15 – Workforce Investment 
Act Programs Fund – DOH 01/05/15 

6. Lexie Nosie – Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – 02/13/15 – Tobacco 
Free Environment Fund – DOH 10/16/06 

7. Brian Hudson – Health and Emergency Services – Hearing Officer Contractor – 01/29/15 – Health 
Service Fund – DOH 03/15/12 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFER 
 

8. Pamela Alvino – Treasurer’s Office – From Accountant – To Accounting Clerk Specialist – 02/15/15 – 
General Fund – Replacing Tiffiney Sanchez 

9. Tiffiney Sanchez – Treasurer’s Office – From Accounting Clerk Specialist – To Accounting Analyst – 
02/15/15 – General Fund  - Replacing Pamela Alvino  

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

10. Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk – Vacated by Judith Moss 
11. Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice Court Clerk Senior – Vacated by Mary Mendez 
12. Health and Emergency Services – Community Health Specialist – Vacated by Lexie Nosie 
13. Community Development – Temporary Senior Planner  
14. Public Works – Automotive Service Worker – Vacated by Tyler Pearce 
15. Public Works - Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – Vacated by C. Brent Bailey 
16. Public Works – Road Maintenance and Equipment Operator – Vacated by Joel McDaniel 
17. Health and Emergency Services – Hearing Officer Contractor – Vacated by Brian Hudson 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
FEBRUARY 17, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Margaret Meares – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 01/25/15 – General Fund – DOH 01/05/15 
2. Caryn Garcia – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 01/30/15 – General Fund – DOH 12/01/14 
3. David Berry – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 05/31/15 – General Fund – DOH 04/11/11 
4. Terri Childers – Sheriff’s Office – Medical Assistant – 02/06/15 – General Fund – DOH 01/20/03 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

5. Julie Taylor – Recorder’s Office – Recorder’s Clerk – 02/23/15 – General Fund – Replacing Caryn 
Garcia 

6. Debra Williams – Clerk of Superior Court – Associate Jury Commissioner – 02/23/15 – General Fund – 
Replacing Sylvia Badilla 

7. Sabrina Falquez – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 02/23/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Marcos Diaz 

8. Guadalupe Aldape – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 02/23/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Dustin Hawkins 

9. Devin Alvarez – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 02/23/15 – Facilities Management 
Fund – Replacing Alex Cunningham 

10. Calley Anderson – County Attorney’s Office – Deputy County Attorney – 03/02/15 – General Fund – 
Replacing Jessica Oortman 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES 
 

11. Frank Gonzales – Constituent Services 2 – Temporary Laborer – 02/23/15 – General Fund – Replacing 
Austin Payne 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

12. Jonathan Bearup – Superior Court – Deputy Court Administrator – 03/17/15 – General Fund  
 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

13. Jordan Reardon – Sheriff’s Office – From Deputy Sheriff – To Detention Officer – 02/09/15 – General 
Fund – Replacing Jordan Reardon 

14. Marcos Diaz – Probation – From Juvenile Detention Officer – To Surveillance Officer – 02/23/15 – 
Adult Probation Service Fees(.50)/General(.50) Funds – Replacing Kevin Kittle 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

15. Sheriff’s Office – 911 System Coordinator – Vacated by Stacey Bryant 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
FEBRUARY 24, 2015 

 
DEPARTURES: 
 

1. Adrian Marks – Community Services – Housing Rehabilitation Specialist – 02/17/15 – Housing Fund – 
DOH 06/23/14 

 
NEW HIRES: 
 

2. Marci Lantz – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 03/02/15 – General Fund – Replacing Brian 
Martin 

 
REQUEST TO POST: 
 

3. Treasurer’s Office – Temporary Treasurer Services Assistant – Vacated by Virginia Mounce 
 
 



   
ARF-3024     Consent Agenda Item      5. K.             
Regular BOS Meeting
Meeting Date: 03/03/2015  
Reporting
Period:

February 6, 2015; and February 13, 2015

Submitted For: Jeff Hessenius, Finance Director 
Submitted By: Jeannie Sgroi, Contracts Administrator, Finance Division

Information
Subject
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under $50,000 for Weeks
Ending 2-6-15; and 2-13-15.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of contracts under $50,000 which have been approved
by the County Manager for the weeks of February 1, 2015, to February 6,
2015; and February 9, 2015 to February 13, 2015.

Attachments
Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for
Weeks Ending 2-06-15 and 2-13-15
Berge Ford Bid
Amendment No. 1-Rodriguez Constructions
Amendment No. 2-TNFX
Service Agreement 110614-1-Azteca Glass
Professional Service Agreement No. 121014-5-Lori Burke
Amendment No. 1-Steven Burk
Amendment No. 1-Tim Nelson
Amendment No. 2-Experienced Firesprinkling
Professional Services Agreement No. 012115-Amanda Anderson
Service Agreement No. 011415-Miner Southwest
Amendment No. 3-WCD
Service Agreement 020315-Dutchaire
Service Agreement 013015-2-DJ's Companies
Service Agreement No 121014-1-Atomic Pest Control



Service Agreement No 121014-1-Atomic Pest Control
Service Agreement No. 123114-1-Barkley Excavating
Service Agreement No. 122314-Hanlon Engineering
Amendment #3-Tree Pro
Amendment No. 2-TNFX



  
Page 1 

 
  

COUNTY MANAGER APPROVED CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 
 
 
February 1, 2015 to February 6, 2015 

Number/Vendor Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

1216IBR014 
Berge Ford 

 

 
Informal Bid Request No. 

1216IBR014 
Purchase New ½ Ton, Full 

Size, Extended Cab, 4x4 
with 6.5’ long, Wide Bed, 

Pick-up Truck 

 

 
$26,972.56 

 
02-04-15 until 

County takes receipt 
of vehicle 

 
2-04-15 

 
Expires 

 
Landfill needs a new pick-up truck and 
will turn in a 2000 Ford F150 truck in 
exchange.  Berge Ford submitted pricing 
for a new Ford F-150 with a 6.5’ bed, as 
well as a new Ford F-150 with a 8’ bed 
and bigger engine.  Fleet Management 
decided to purchase the one with the 6.5’ 
bed for $23,972.56. 
 

 
120214-1 
Rodriguez 

Constructions  

 

 
Amendment No. 1 to 

Service Agreement No. 
120214-1 

Rehabilitation Project No. 
HH#131-01 

 

 
Increase 
contract 

amount by 
$2,000.00 for a 

new total 
contract 

amount of 
$48,426.00 

 

 
12-10-14 to 06-30-15 

 
2-04-15 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No. 1 will serve to increase 
the contract amount by $2,000.00 for the 
addition of floor insulation, installation 
of a 3” vent for water drain flow, and 
addition of baseboards trim installation 
and drywall repairs unforeseen during 
prior inspections. 

 
011513-1 

TNFX 

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Contract No. 011513-1 
Electronic Medical Records 

and Charting Software 
Hosting Agreement 
Gila County Juvenile 

Detention 

 

 
$3,096.00 

 
02-01-15 to 01-31-16 

 
2-04-15 

 
Expires 

 
Amendment No.2 is issued to extend the 
contract from February 01, 2015 to 
January 31, 2016.  

 
110614-1 

Azteca Glass, Inc. 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

110614-1 
On-Call Glass Repair 

 

 

 
Not to Exceed 

$5,000.00 
 

 
02-04-15 to 02-03-16 

 
02-04-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one year 
periods 

 
Contractor needed to repair or replace 
building glass in various Gila County 
buildings in and around Globe, Arizona 
on an On-Call basis or As Needed basis. 

 

 
 
 



  
Page 2 

 
  

 
 
 
February 1, 2015 to February 6, 2015 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

121014-5 
Lori Burke, RN, FNP  

 

 
Professional Services 

Agreement No. 121014-5 
Family Planning Consulting 
& Well Child Examination 

Services 

 

 
Not to Exceed 

$5,000.00 

 
1-1-15 to 12-31-15 

 
2-4-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one year 
periods. 

 
To provide Family Planning services to 
clients that meet eligibility criteria. 

 
041514 

Steven E. Burk, 
Attorney  

 

 
Professional Services 
Contract No. 041514 

Legal Services 

 

 
N/A 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
2-4-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor provides legal services to the 
Gila County Superior Court.  Amendment  
No. 1 has been issued to clarify the billing 
and payment language contained in the 
executed contract. Per BOS–FIN-002, if 
neither the scope or amount of the 
originally Board approved contract has 
been changed, the County Manager has 
the authority to execute an amendment 
to the contract. 
 

 
042514-1 

Timothy V. Nelson, 
Attorney  

 

 
Professional Services 

Contract No. 042514-1 
Legal Services 

 

 
N/A 

 
7-1-14 to 6-30-15 

 
2-4-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor provides legal services to the 
Gila County Superior Court.  Amendment  
No. 1 has been issued to clarify the billing 
and payment language contained in the 
executed contract. Per BOS–FIN-002, if 
neither the scope or amount of the 
originally Board approved contract has 
been changed, the County Manager has 
the authority to execute an amendment 
to the contract. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
Page 3 

 
  

 
 
February 1, 2015 to February 6, 2015 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

082914 
Experienced 

Firesprinkling, Inc.  

 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 

Service Agreement No. 
082914 

Service & Miscellaneous 
Repairs to Fire Sprinkling 

Systems 

 

 
Increase 
contract 

amount by 
$2,000.00 for a 

new total 
contract 

amount of 
$6,499.00 

 

 
9-10-14 to 9-9-15 

 
2-4-15 

 
Expires 

 
The fire sprinkler system will not hold 
pressure and is still clogged due to 
corrosive failure.  The Administration 
building in Payson is not protected by 
fire without this system in operation. 
Last summer it was discovered that 
water had been introduced into the “dry 
system” which is not supposed to be 
tested by the traditional water flow test. 
We requested a contract to explore the 
damage and repair of damaged parts. 
However, the damage is more severe and 
will require total replacement of the 
system. 
 

 
012115 

Amanda Anderson, 
MMS, PA-C, PLLC  

 

 
Professional Services 

Agreement No. 012115 
Psychiatric Consultation 

Services 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$1,500.00 
 

 
2-4-15 to 6-30-15 

 
2-4-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional one year 
periods. 

 
Provide Psychiatric Consultation 
Services regarding mental health issues 
for inmates. 

 
011415 

Miner Southwest  

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

011415 
Service and Repair Rolling 

Steel Doors 
Facilities Warehouse 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$1,573.04 
 

 
2-4-15 to 2-27-15 

 
2-4-15 

 
Expires 

 
Service and repair three steel rolling 
doors at the Facilities Warehouse. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
Page 4 

 
  

 
February 9, 2015 to February 13, 2015 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

062512-1 
WCD Enterprises, Inc. 

 

 
Amendment No. 3 to 

Contract No. 062512-1 
Janitorial Service for 
Southern Gila County 

 

 
$15,480.00 

 
3-18-15 to 5-17-15 

 
2-10-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contractor provides janitorial services 
for many County facilities in Southern 
Gila County.  Public Works has requested 
this Amendment be issued for a two 
month extension only, to provide time to 
put this contract back out for bid. 
 

 
020315 

Dutchaire LLC 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

020315 
URRD Emergency 

Repair/Replace HVAC 
Community Services 

 

 
$6,000.00 

 
2-10-15 to 6-30-15 

 
2-10-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional 1 year 
periods 

 
To enable Dutchaire to perform 
emergency repair/repair on HVAC for 
Housing clients. 

 
013015-1 

DJ’s Companies 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

013015-2 
Porta Jon Service 

Facilities Fairgrounds 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$2,392.00 

 
2-10-15 to 2-9-16 

 
2-10-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional 1 year 
periods 

 
Landscape crews made up of primarily 
prison trustees have a portable toilet on 
a trailer to use. 

 
121014-1 

Atomic Pest Control 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

121014-1 
Pest Control Service for 

Northern Gila County 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$3,320.00 

 
2-10-15 to 2-9-16 

 
2-10-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional 1 year 
periods 

 
To secure contract for pest control 
service for Northern Gila County 
Facilities; Star Valley Roads Office, Gas 
Shop, Diesel Shop, Administration Bldg, 
Courthouse Complex, 
Assessors/Recorders Bldg, Community 
Services Bldg, Sheriff’s Office/Jail & JP 
Court Bldg, Other non-routine on call 
services such as bee removal, etc. 
 

 
123114-1 

Barkley Excavating LLC 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

123114-1 
Snow Removal for County 

Offices in Payson 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$2,000.00 

 
2-10-15 to 2-9-16 

 
2-10-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional 1 year 
periods 

 
Snow removal may be needed in parking 
lots of Payson buildings. 
 

 
 
 
 



  
Page 5 

 
  

 
 
February 9, 2015 to February 13, 2015 

Number/Vendor  Title Amount Term Approved Renewal Option Summary 
 

122314 
Hanlon Engineering 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

122314 
Engineering Analysis for 

Modular Relocation to 
Payson 

Feasibility & Cost 
Estimation Services 

 

 
$15,825.00 

 
5 weeks to complete 

from the date signed by 
County Manager 

 
2-10-15 

 
Expires 

 
Structural Engineering Evaluation for 
Relocation of two existing 24 ft. x 60 ft. 
Modular Units to Payson needed to 
determine feasibility and roof load 
requirements for roof and substructure.  
Units to be used for proposed Payson 
Chamber of Commerce so County can 
proceed with a remodel for the Sheriff’s 
office. 
 

 
041613 
Tree Pro 

 

 
Service Agreement No. 

041613 
Tree Removal 

Public Works Timber 
Region 

 

 
Increase 
contract 

amount by 
$1,500.00 for a 

new total 
contract 

amount of 
$5,100.00 

 

 
4-25-15 to 4-24-15 

 
2-10-15 

 
Option to renew for two 

additional 1 year 
periods 

 
Amendment No. 3 will increase the 
contract amount by $1,500.00 for the 
removal of potentially hazardous trees in 
the Timber Region. 

 
011513 

TNFX 

 
Amendment No. 2 to 
Contract No. 011513 

Electronic Medical Records 
& Charting Software 
Hosting Agreement 
Gila County Sheriff’s 
Medical Department 

 

 
Not to exceed 

$2,700.00 

 
2-1-15 to 1-31-16 

 
2-10-15 

 
Expires 

 
Contract expires on 01-31-15. 
Amendment No. 2 will extend the 
contract term to 01-31-16. Software 
Hosting Agreement with TNFX for 
electronic medical records and charting 
for the Gila County Sheriff’s Office. 

 




































































































































































































	Agenda
	 Item 2.A. - Resolution Copper Company Project Update
	 Item 3.A. - Curfew Ordinance No. 2015-01
	Att1_Ordinance No. 2015-01
	SECTION I – DEFINITIONS:
	SECTION II – OFFENSES:
	SECTION III – DEFENSES:
	SECTION IV – PARENT OR GUARDIAN DUTIES UPON DEMAND FOR CUSTODY:
	SECTION VI – SEPARATE OFFENSE:
	SECTION VII – PENALTIES:
	SECTION VIII – SEVERABILITY:
	SECTION IX – PRESERVATION OF PEACE, HEALTH AND SAFETY:
	GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS:
	APPROVED AS TO FORM: ATTEST:

	Att2_Public Hearing Notice for Curfew Ordinance
	 Item 4.A. - Adult Literacy Materials Grant Application
	Att1_LSTA Grant Application
	 Item 4.B. - Contract Award for Request For Proposals No. 111714
	Att1_Bid Results
	Att2_Empire Truck and Trailer proposal
	Att3_Utility Trailer Sales Co. of Arizona proposal
	Att4_RDO Equipment proposal
	Att5_Ditch Witch of Arizona proposal
	Att6_Contract No. 111714-Empire Truck and Trailer
	Att7_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.C. - Contract No. 013015 with EPS Group for the civil design on the Copper Administration Building
	Att1_Professional Consulting Services Contract No. 013015
	Att2_Request for Qualifications
	Att3_EPS Group Statement of Qualifications
	Att4_Tetra Tech Statement of Qualifications
	Att5_Scoring results for EPS Group
	Att6_Scoring results for Tetra Tech
	Att7_Final Negotiated Pricing and Scope with EPS Group
	Att8_Cost Analysis-Itemized Cost Sheet
	Att9_Legal Explanation
	GILA COUNTY ATTORNEY

	 Item 4.D. - Arizona Nutrition Network SNAP-Ed Request for Grant Application No. ADHS15-00004836
	Att1_Request for Grant Application No. ADHS15-00004836
	 Item 4.E. - Sale of State-Owned Tax Deeded Land to the City of Globe-Parcel No. 208-03-102B
	Att1_Quit Claim Deed for Parcel No. 208-03-102B
	Att2_Request Letter from City of Globe
	Att3_Pictures and Maps for Parcel No. 208-03-102B
	Att4_Treasurer's Deed for Parcel No. 208-03-102B
	 Item 4.F. - Carson Construction Complaint
	Att1_Denial Letter
	Att2_Complaint
	 Item 5.A. - Grant Award Contract CNA15-430 from the State of Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board Equipment Grant Program for Tasers
	Att1_Grant Award Contract No. CNA 15-430-Tasers
	Att2_Grant Application for Tasers
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	 Item 5.B. - Grant Award Contract No. CNA15-431 from the State of Arizona Constable Ethics, Standards & Training Board Equipment Grant Program for Vests
	Att1_Grant Award Contract No. CNA 15-431-Vests
	Att2_Grant Application for Ballistic Vests
	Att3_Legal Explanation
	 Item 5.C. - Gila County Local Emergency Planning Committee Resignations and Appointments
	Att1_GC Local Emergency Planning Committee-Proposed 3-3-15
	Att2_O'Driscoll Resignation
	Att3_Williams Resignation
	Att4_O'Driscoll Appointment
	NOTICE OF LEPC APPOINTMENT, RESIGNATION, OR REMOVAL
	  Group I:   Elected State and Local Officials
	 Group IV:  Community Groups


	Att5_Williams Appointment
	Arizona Emergency Response Commission
	5636 East McDowell Road
	Phoenix, AZ 85008-3495
	Janet Napolitano, Governor                                                                       Frank F. Navarrete, Chair
	Daniel Roe, Executive Director
	NOTICE OF LEPC APPOINTMENT, RESIGNATION, OR REMOVAL

	Group I:   Elected State and Local Officials
	Group IV:  Community Groups

	Att6_LEPC 01-26-15 Minutes
	 Item 5.D. - Phoenix Metro Bicycle Club Gila County Courthouse Parking Lot Use Request, March 14, 2015
	Att1_PMBC Building Use App
	Att2_PMBC Letter 
	Att3_PMBC Cert of Ins
	Att4_Waiver
	 Item 5.E. - Intergovernmental Agreement Renewal between Gila County and the Town of Mammoth
	Att1_IGA Town of Mammoth
	Att2_Legal Explanation
	 Item 5.F. - January 2015
	Att1_January 2015
	Jan 2015 treas JP.pdf
	jp0404 jan2015

	 Item 5.G. - January 2015
	Att1_Clerk of Superior Court January 2015 Report
	 Item 5.H. - January 2015
	Att1_Globe Justice Court Report for January, 2015
	 Item 5.I. - January 27, 2015
	Att1_01-27-15 BOS Meeting Minutes
	 Item 5.J. - 02_03_15, 02_10_15, 02_17_15, and 02_24_15
	Att1_HR Summary Report
	Att2_02_03_15 Human Resources Report
	Att3_02_10_15 Human Resources Report
	Att4_02_17_15 Human Resources Report
	Att5_02_24_15 Human Resources Report
	 Item 5.K. - February 6, 2015_ and February 13, 2015
	Att1_Report for County Manager Approved Contracts Under 50,000 for Weeks Ending 2-06-15 and 2-13-15
	Att2_Berge Ford Bid
	Att3_Amendment No. 1-Rodriguez Constructions
	Att4_Amendment No. 2-TNFX
	Att5_Service Agreement 110614-1-Azteca Glass
	Att6_Professional Service Agreement No. 121014-5-Lori Burke
	Att7_Amendment No. 1-Steven Burk
	Att8_Amendment No. 1-Tim Nelson
	Att9_Amendment No. 2-Experienced Firesprinkling
	Att10_Professional Services Agreement No. 012115-Amanda Anderson
	Att11_Service Agreement No. 011415-Miner Southwest
	Att12_Amendment No. 3-WCD
	Att13_Service Agreement 020315-Dutchaire
	Att14_Service Agreement 013015-2-DJ's Companies
	Att15_Service Agreement No  121014-1-Atomic Pest Control
	Att16_Service Agreement No. 123114-1-Barkley Excavating
	Att17_Service Agreement No. 122314-Hanlon Engineering
	Att18_Amendment _3-Tree Pro
	Att19_Amendment No. 2-TNFX

